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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to this Committee session of this Council.

          4  We, being firm believers in going out with some

          5  degree of noise, have some very important business

          6  to do today. Effectively, we're doing Intro. 954,

          7  which is the duties of the property assessors. MN 4,

          8  which is a Message of Necessity 4, which is a

          9  revenue mod. We're collecting close to $600 million,

         10  $595 million in revenue reductions.

         11                 MN 3, which is an expense budget mod,

         12  which replaces MN 2, which the Mayor has withdrawn,

         13  and we have two Land Use items, and we're also

         14  voting to file MN 2.

         15                 The MNs and the budget mods still

         16  requires some degree of interaction with the

         17  Council, so we're going to do the other business,

         18  suspend the Committee's meeting for a few moments,

         19  or for however long necessary, so we can deal with

         20  the balance of the budget mod, and then come back up

         21  and do the budget mod.

         22                 What I'd like to do now is put on the

         23  property assessors bill, and ask the Department of

         24  Finance, Commissioner Eristoff, to testify.

         25                 Commissioner, how are you?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Recovering

          3  from a flu, sir. But thank you very much for

          4  inquiring.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh, then remind

          6  me not to kiss you. I hope you feel better,

          7  Commissioner.

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Thank you for

          9  affording us the opportunity to appear before you

         10  today on this legislation. With your permission, I

         11  will be asking Deputy Commissioner Glenn Borin of

         12  our Property Division to actually give the testimony

         13  today. I had not intended to appear today, but

         14  circumstances conspired to bring me here, because I

         15  think this is a very, very important piece of

         16  legislation, and we are, as we will explain, very

         17  much against it, and I thought it was appropriate

         18  for me to come and answer any questions that I

         19  could. But for the substance of our testimony, with

         20  your permission, Mr. Chairman, I'm going to call

         21  upon Deputy Commissioner Glenn Borin.

         22                 Thank you, sir.

         23                 And we're also joined by Associate

         24  Commissioner Israel Shupper, who is our Associate

         25  Commissioner for Tax Policy.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I believe he is

          4  the Associate Commissioner for Tax Policy in

          5  Perpetuity.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We hope so.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Borin,

          9  please.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Thank you.

         11                 Good morning, Chairman -- excuse me,

         12  good afternoon, Chairman Berman, and members of the

         13  City Council Finance Committee. I am Glenn Borin,

         14  Deputy Commissioner for the Property Division of the

         15  Department of Finance.

         16                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         17  address the Committee on legislation, Intro. No.

         18  954, that would amend the Administrative Code in

         19  relation to the duties of assessors.

         20                 At this time more than ever the City

         21  must guard its sources of revenue and avoid

         22  unnecessary spending. We cannot afford to indulge

         23  the self-interest of a small group of employees at

         24  the expense of sound fiscal policy.

         25                 The Mayor and Finance Commissioner
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          2  are responsible for the accuracy and fairness of tax

          3  assessments that produce nearly $9 billion in annual

          4  revenues.

          5                 If there were ever a time to curtail

          6  their authority to carry out this essential

          7  function, this is not the time.

          8                 In my testimony today I will speak to

          9  the issues that were raised by the Committee's

         10  questions at the previous hearing, and address some

         11  of the misstatements of fact that were disseminated

         12  by the bill supporters at that session.

         13                 Specifically I will explain that this

         14  bill's authors propose a hiring spree that will cost

         15  more than $12 million, most of that in annual

         16  recurring expense, but will not provide any

         17  additional revenue in return.

         18                 Moreover, by curtailing the ability

         19  of the City to management the assessment process, it

         20  places the existing revenues from the property tax

         21  at risk.

         22                 If this local law were enacted and

         23  implemented in the manner contemplated by its

         24  supporters, it would require the hiring of 124 new

         25  employees at an average salary of $52,000, and a
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          2  total cost of more than $12 million for salaries,

          3  fringe benefits, office space, and related expenses.

          4                 These estimates are based on the

          5  addition of 106 mandated assessment positions, and

          6  allotment of a proportionate number of new

          7  supervisors.

          8                 Significantly, the bill would require

          9  that all of the mandatory additional staff of 106 be

         10  assigned to districts rather than to other tasks

         11  that the Department may consider more worthwhile.

         12                 At the same time --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Excuse me. When

         14  you say assigned to tasks, are you referring to the

         15  role that they would have to carry out as assessors?

         16                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: To districts,

         17  sir. Assessment districts.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: The bulk

         19  of our assessing staff is currently assigned to

         20  geographic districts. What this bill would do is

         21  make those districts very small and dictate very

         22  precisely the boundaries of the districts, or the

         23  size of the districts, and also mandate that each

         24  district have an employee assigned to it.

         25                 So that, for example, in practical
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          2  terms, if the bill were to be enacted into law and I

          3  could get part of the needed additional staff from

          4  the budget process but not all of it, I would have

          5  to empty out any specialized units that currently

          6  exist which are rather small but very important.

          7                 There are units that do quality

          8  control, that do computerized, statistical analysis,

          9  that work on some of the construction exemption

         10  programs, for example.

         11                 There are some assessing staff, as

         12  well as supervisors of the field staff that are not

         13  in districts. So, this law directs the Finance

         14  Commissioner to fill, to create a certain number of

         15  districts, about double the current number, and fill

         16  each one with a qualified employee. The employees

         17  are in the civil service title City assessor,

         18  presumably that's what the authors had in mind for

         19  filling those positions.

         20                 Does that answer your question?

         21                 At the same time, though, it would

         22  add these additional expenses, about a 50 percent

         23  increase in the budget for operation of the

         24  assessment function. It would add no revenue, and it

         25  would seriously interfere with the Finance
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          2  Department's ability to value the City's taxable

          3  real property in a manner that will fairly and

          4  securely support the annual tax levy.

          5                 We have not heard or seen any

          6  explanation on why this legislation is necessary or

          7  desirable, except in the written material prepared

          8  by the assessors' local collective bargaining unit.

          9                 This material submitted at last

         10  week's hearing provides some misleading and

         11  inaccurate statistics in support of the contention

         12  that this legislation would generate revenue for the

         13  City.

         14                 The simple fact is that if the

         15  sources of additional revenue claimed by the bill's

         16  proponents actually existed, the Commissioner of

         17  Finance would hire the staff necessary to obtain

         18  that revenue.

         19                 Unless the cost of the added staff

         20  would exceed the potential benefits.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Can I ask you a

         22  question? How many additional assessors would be

         23  hired?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: The bill

         25  would, in our analysis, call for 106 additional
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          2  assessment districts, it would have to be filled

          3  with one person, and then we would have to hire

          4  approximately 18 additional supervisors to maintain

          5  their ratio of supervision that we have now.

          6                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: So a total of

          7  124.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And the over 100

          9  assessors, in your view, would not generate

         10  sufficient monies to warrant their hiring?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: No. In

         12  fact, that number of assessors, which is nearly

         13  double we have assigned to field tasks, would create

         14  severe strains on the Department's ability to

         15  monitor the quality of the work, and the quality is

         16  the important thing in this job.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, the

         18  monitoring would be done by the supervisors that you

         19  just said you would hire, right?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: That's the

         21  first level of monitoring. There's a need to assure

         22  that each district, or each parcel, really, is

         23  valued in accordance with a consistent set of

         24  guidelines that we don't have in effect, 200

         25  separate assessment jurisdictions with the City of
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          2  New York, with taxpayers being unfairly penalized or

          3  receiving windfall benefits, depending on which

          4  district they happen to have property in.

          5                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: So, there's a

          6  whole quality control function within the

          7  Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I understand. I

          9  understand.

         10                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes. And has

         11  several different layers. Plus, we also use

         12  computerized statistical analysis as part of our QC

         13  function to normalize and make sure that we are

         14  treating every district, every property in the City

         15  fairly and appropriate.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And we want to

         17  always treat everybody fairly.

         18                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Except for

         19  Southern Brooklyn, I think.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I could

         21  understand that. He's getting even with me for the

         22  time he spent in the City Council.

         23                 Mr. Borin, please continue.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Let me

         25  address the claims that there's a revenue benefit
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          2  here. There are two prongs to the local's claims of

          3  found money here.

          4                 First, it is argued that large

          5  amounts are spent on new construction and renovation

          6  in the City, but that the Finance Department fails

          7  to hire enough assessing staff to discover and value

          8  all of this property.

          9                 The second prong is that the number

         10  of active assessment protests have increased, and

         11  that this is an indication of a need for more field

         12  staff.

         13                 For both points, the local supplies

         14  statistics that are unfortunately not entirely

         15  accurate. Beyond their misstatements of the

         16  statistics, the bill supporters misunderstand the

         17  fundamentals of evaluation and its relationship to

         18  tax revenue.

         19                 One of the local's contentions

         20  relates to the valuated by construction. In support

         21  of this contention, the local's memorandum cites a

         22  number for construction spending from an

         23  organization which it describes as the Building

         24  Council of New York.

         25                 The New York Building Congress
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          2  reports a similar figure, but this number is well

          3  more than 50 percent of the number that the New York

          4  Building Congress reports is for public projects,

          5  many of which are not even assessed by the

          6  Department of Finance, and all of which that are

          7  assessed are fully exempt.

          8                 Even in the private sector

          9  construction, a great, a very large percentage of

         10  all new construction and renovation receives

         11  exemption and/or abatement benefits in the early

         12  years after completion so that the revenue from the

         13  construction that we do put on is rather a minor

         14  contributor to the growth of the tax base initially.

         15                 There are numerous other errors in

         16  the computations and math behind this but I won't go

         17  into the details unless the Council members would

         18  like me to.

         19                 But most importantly, this analysis

         20  overlooks the basic fact that a building can have

         21  only as much value as its economic support in terms

         22  of income or in the case of one-, two- and

         23  three-family homes, the sales prices.

         24                 The amount of money spent to build or

         25  renovate does not independently create value. If the
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          2  assessment staff accurately identify the existence

          3  of a building and analyze its income potential, they

          4  can accurately place its value on the roll.

          5                 The current staff is sufficient in

          6  size, to investigate and value every new building in

          7  major renovation. The further allocation of staff to

          8  this function would be wasteful.

          9                 The second point on the revenue claim

         10  relates to assessment appeals, and here just the

         11  numbers don't make sense.

         12                 The fact of the matter is that this

         13  number of appeals has declined over the past decade,

         14  and the other, there were a number of appeals that

         15  were initiated at the Tax Commission, where all

         16  appeals begin with 56,000 in 1995 which was the

         17  peak, and it's declined since then to less than

         18  50,000 today. Currently, in the most recent year for

         19  which we have statistics from the Tax Commission

         20  there were about 49,000 appeals filed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And you viewed

         22  that as a consequence of the inherent fairness, as

         23  opposed to the complexity of the process?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: No, I

         25  don't view it at that. I'm only trying to rebut what
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          2  is offered as evidence that revenues be found there,

          3  and I don't think there is.

          4                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: If I may go

          5  out on a limb here, Mr. Chairman? I'm sorry to

          6  interrupt, but I think, if I'm correct, this

          7  legislation has been around for a few years, and as

          8  the Deputy Commissioner just noted, we had

          9  applications peak before the Tax Commission in the

         10  late eighties and peak in 1995. That relates to a

         11  particular period in the economic cycle you will

         12  have lived through, and at that time, as you know, I

         13  believe there were cutbacks at the Department of

         14  Finance, as well as other agencies, to deal with the

         15  fiscal situation at that point.

         16                 So, I think much of this relates to

         17  that era.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I clearly agree

         19  that is probably as a consequence of the economy at

         20  a given time and place, and it is likely that we are

         21  going to go back into a troubled economy again, so

         22  it will probably increase -- the application for

         23  appeal will probably increase, but we don't know.

         24                 I'm sorry, sir.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: No
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          2  problem.

          3                 The memo also cites the fact that

          4  more cases have built up in court that aren't being

          5  resolved. To me that only indicates that neither the

          6  City nor the owner feels that there is that much

          7  merit to these cases, and therefore they're not

          8  pursued vigorously. So, I don't think that that

          9  supports the contention that revenue be attained

         10  with more staff walking around looking at the

         11  buildings.

         12                 Really, to understand the

         13  relationship between assessment activity and

         14  revenue, you have to look at what the tax base

         15  consists of. Only 13 percent of the revenue comes

         16  from taxes from the 632,000 one-, two, and

         17  three-family homes, which is the great bulk of the

         18  parcels on the roll.

         19                 At the other extreme, a large share

         20  of the revenue is derived from highly valuable

         21  properties that are relatively smaller in number.

         22                 For example, 400 class A office

         23  buildings produced 15 percent of the revenue.

         24  Another four percent comes from Consolidated Edison

         25  special franchise, and a similar amount from 57
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          2  major hotels.

          3                 In total, 87,000 buildings produce 81

          4  percent of the revenue, and within this group, the

          5  highest valued properties produce a

          6  disproportionately large share of the revenue.

          7                 This pyramid structure is not the

          8  result of bad assessing, it results from a

          9  combination of the facts of the real estate market,

         10  and public policy which reduces the class 1 share of

         11  the tax levy.

         12                 While Finance considers accurate,

         13  consistent and fair evaluation of Class 1 property

         14  an important duty, it does not believe there is a

         15  large amount of hidden revenue in the Class 1.

         16                 On the other hand, the accurate

         17  valuation of major properties is very important to

         18  the City's fiscal security.

         19                 In the case of one-, two-, and

         20  three-family property, the development of a

         21  systematic data collection process, coupled with

         22  computerized statistical analysis of sales prices

         23  produces much more accurate values today than were

         24  produced years ago when more than 100 individual

         25  assessors determined all the values.
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          2                 Similarly, when it comes to

          3  commercial, multi-family and utility property,

          4  especially high-valued property, it is the quality

          5  and consistency of the effort, not the quantity of

          6  the effort that really makes the difference in

          7  producing an accurate role.

          8                 For all of these reasons, the Finance

          9  Department strongly recommends that the Committee on

         10  Finance and the Council at large disapprove this

         11  bill.

         12                 I would be pleased to answer any of

         13  your questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         15                 Commissioner, Mr. Shupper, anybody

         16  have anything else to add?

         17                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: No, I think

         18  between the two sets of testimony we've covered all

         19  of the relevant issues. There's also a memo in

         20  opposition prepared by the Mayor's Office that

         21  covers some technical legal points.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right.

         23                 Ms. Moskowitz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're welcome.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

          3  very much, and thank you, Commissioner, for being

          4  here.

          5                 You and your colleagues have

          6  suggested that the real issue is quality not

          7  quantity, but obviously at a certain point that

          8  becomes a somewhat absurd argument, right? If the

          9  tax assessors have such a difficult caseload, then

         10  you're not going to get quality.

         11                 So, one just factual question I have

         12  is, what is the average caseload?

         13                 I don't know exactly how you measure

         14  that.

         15                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Well, frankly,

         16  right now we feel the current caseload and the

         17  apportionment of responsibility among the assessing

         18  staff is appropriate. I mean, otherwise we would

         19  make changes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Do you know what

         21  the average caseload is?

         22                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We have 165

         23  assessors, give or take, and the caseload differs

         24  according to the kind of district they're dealing

         25  with.
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          2                 I'll let Commissioner Borin

          3  elaborate.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: We have

          5  districts as small as 800 parcels in the high value

          6  parts of Manhattan to close to the 10,000 number in

          7  Southern Staten Island where it's mostly one-, two-,

          8  and three-family homes and vacant lots.

          9                 In between there's a range which, you

         10  know, varies similarly depending on the complexity

         11  and value of the property.

         12                 So, in effect, we've allocated a

         13  disproportionate large portion of our staff to the

         14  properties that produce the most revenue, and also

         15  tend to be the more complex properties to analyze.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: And has,

         17  over the last ten years has the caseload, I realize

         18  it's a little hard to quantify because you are

         19  giving different amounts, you know, you can't just

         20  do it per unit, but has the caseload gone up in the

         21  last ten years?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: In the

         23  early nineties there were reductions in the staff

         24  and the caseload was increased at that time.

         25                 Since then, in more recent years,
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          2  we've added some assessors in Manhattan, that have

          3  reduced the caseload throughout much of Manhattan to

          4  the numbers that are now about as low as they've

          5  ever been in the history of the assessment function

          6  in the City.

          7                 I don't know if that answers your --

          8                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: The nature of

          9  the job is quite different, depending on where

         10  you're assigned to.

         11                 I mean, and depending upon the kinds

         12  of properties you're dealing with. So, in a one-,

         13  two-, and three-family home situation, you are

         14  looking at sales prices.

         15                 We have access to that kind of

         16  information very easily. This is computerized. We

         17  don't run the office of the City Register, we can

         18  get the information we need, and we have ways of

         19  picking up changes to properties and other kinds of

         20  things that happen.

         21                 On the other hand, when you're

         22  dealing with high-value properties, commercial

         23  buildings and whatnot, you're analyzing revenue

         24  streams, and you have to make all kinds of -- they

         25  make annual reports but then we have to go through
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          2  those reports and, you know, frankly, work with the

          3  numbers to come up with something real and

          4  defensible ultimately, and that's a complex process

          5  and it takes a lot of training and a lot of

          6  assurance.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: I would

          8  add one thing. You know, I gave you the numbers for

          9  this assignment, I think it's worthwhile looking at

         10  some other types of assignments. For example,

         11  essentially one person, or one of their persons,

         12  does our modeling calibration, and that's really an

         13  assignment that covers 600,000 one-, two-, and

         14  three-family homes, although they don't do the

         15  entire job, they are the core of the valuation of

         16  that process. That's like one person to 600,000.

         17                 In other assignments, such as our

         18  Quality Control Unit, and if you go outside of

         19  Finance, I was at one time with the Tax Commission,

         20  I know we had caseloads for people in the same title

         21  of 4,000 assessment appeals. So, there is a variety,

         22  and similar numbers in our quality control group.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You mentioned
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          2  you were with the Tax Bureau. You know how you are

          3  going to cut down on cases going to the Tax

          4  Commission? By letting them know that not only can

          5  you reduce the assessment, but you can raise the

          6  assessment. Since your power is only to reduce, if

          7  they new they were coming to you and they said,

          8  well, I'm taking a chance on getting it reduced or

          9  raising it, a lot of people have second thoughts

         10  about coming to you, correct?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Well, the

         12  current law in both -- for the Tax Commission is

         13  that they can't raise --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I know what

         15  the law is. I'm saying we changed the law so people

         16  knew, a lot of them would hesitate because they had

         17  nothing to lose, all they can do is get a reduction,

         18  they can't get an increase.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: I would

         20  agree that there is no disincentive in the current

         21  system.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But there's

         23  an incentive to get a reduction.

         24                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: It's almost

         25  malpractice not to file a --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That's right.

          3  And to me that's long due, that should have been

          4  changed many years ago. If you're going to evaluate

          5  them and you say that's an underassessed property,

          6  you should be able to raise it up. And then a lot of

          7  people who are doing it spuriously would hesitate

          8  about giving you a lot of work to do in your

          9  Commission, since they know there is a likelihood or

         10  some chance they may raise the tax assessment.

         11                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: I think you've

         12  just identified a career opportunity for me. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You would do

         15  well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, are

         17  you at peace now?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I'm at peace.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I raised this

         21  issue when I was the Chairman of the Revenue

         22  Enhancement Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That was an

         24  eternity ago.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is
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          2  something that -- what did you say, Herb?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Spigner.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Just a quick

          5  question, Commissioner.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Very quick.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You can only

          8  raise one property by six percent a year, no more

          9  than 20 percent in five years; is that still the

         10  rule?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Yes,

         12  that's still in effect.

         13                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: That's why

         14  essentially we're making the point that more

         15  assessors won't lead to more revenue.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: I will

         17  point out, when a new house is built or there is an

         18  addition to a house, we can exceed those limits to

         19  capture the new configuration of the property.

         20                 However, we're still bound by the

         21  fact that whatever houses of that new size and

         22  quality sell for in that neighborhood is what is the

         23  maximum we could value it for.

         24                 So, we may get a temporary exception

         25  from this assessment caps, but we still have the cap
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          2  of what our sales prices tell us the house is worth.

          3  And if we accurately value and get --

          4                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Yes. And the

          5  fact that an addition was made to a house doesn't

          6  necessarily mean that it's one-for-one increase in

          7  its value. As a property owner, I can tell you

          8  rather painfully from experience that, you know, you

          9  don't always recoup investments you make in your

         10  property. So, it doesn't really say anything to say

         11  that if we capture additions sooner, let's say, that

         12  that necessarily increases tax assessments and

         13  revenue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: What I find

         15  puzzling as one reads the real estate section of the

         16  various papers, when they talk about recent sales,

         17  you can see a sale in one part of the City for

         18  $300,000 and the annual taxes are, I don't know,

         19  $3,000 a year. Then you can see another sale with

         20  $150,000 and the annual taxes are $3,000, and there

         21  is no consistency in selling price and what the

         22  taxes are, so I guess that reflects the law.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Yes, I

         24  would say that is -- 90 percent of that is due to

         25  the caps. If you were to look at the market value
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          2  that Finance listed on the assessment role, very

          3  often it's fairly close to what the sales prices

          4  are.

          5                 I mean, there's a variation in sales

          6  price, not everybody would pay the same thing for

          7  the same house, but on average there are sales

          8  prices that are similar to our market value

          9  estimates, and the reason is we use the sales prices

         10  to determine the market value estimates.

         11                 But the caps do cause this lack of

         12  uniformity in the effective tax burden.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: The cap

         14  applies when the house is resold, doesn't it?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: The cap is

         16  always there, the only exception --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Assuming the

         18  house, the last time it was taxed, it was taxed at

         19  $200,000 and it's sold for $300,000, can you then

         20  raise the -- are you still bound by the cap on that

         21  property?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: We remain

         23  bound from year to year.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: On that

         25  property?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BORIN: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, I want

          5  to thank you very much, Commissioners, and have a

          6  good holiday.

          7                 Let me, before you leave, this being

          8  our last session, I want to thank you for the many

          9  years of cooperation that your agency has given us.

         10  It's been a privilege and an honor to work with you.

         11  Thank you. All of you.

         12                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: We could not

         13  have asked for a better chairman of an oversight

         14  committee, sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, you could

         16  have asked for it, you weren't going to get it.

         17                 COMMISSIONER ERISTOFF: Our

         18  compliments to you and best wishes on the holiday.

         19  See you soon in the new year, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And to you also.

         21  Thank you so much, Commissioner.

         22                 Okay, Matthew Joseph and David Moog.

         23                 Gentlemen, would you each identify

         24  yourselves?

         25                 MR. MOOG: David Moog, Local 1757.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. Matthew,

          3  both you gentlemen testified last time.

          4                 MR. MOOG: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, in the spirit

          6  of the season, would you respond, merely summarize

          7  your testimony this time?

          8                 MR. JOSEPH: David is going to do that

          9  for us. But I would like to say one thing, is that

         10  even though there might be 169 or 179 assessors,

         11  there are 124 district assessors who does the actual

         12  work.

         13                 David will give the testimony.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         15                 David, if you would briefly address

         16  the issue.

         17                 MR. MOOG: Pardon me?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: If you would

         19  briefly address the issue, I would appreciate it.

         20                 MR. MOOG: Yes. Our local just wants

         21  to point out several salient facts and points

         22  concerning the bill that bolster our argument for

         23  its passage by the Council.

         24                 In 1991 the Finance Department had

         25  109 district assessors, the number of districts have
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          2  been reduced to 124 for the 2001-2002 year.

          3                 According to the Finance Department

          4  the assessment office is able to function with less

          5  personnel due to the CAMA system, that's the

          6  Computerized Assessment system implemented.

          7                 The CAMA system they referenced is

          8  software developed in the mid-1980s for assessing

          9  jurisdictions of Ohio. The operating system is not

         10  window-based and a private contractor maintains it.

         11                 Many attempts by our assessing staff

         12  to have changes made to the software to bring about

         13  a more efficient programming has failed.

         14  Management's argument against any change is the high

         15  costs due to the private contractor to implement any

         16  modifications.

         17                 The menu driven software along with

         18  the required code book is still in use when most

         19  assessing jurisdictions have moved on to an in-house

         20  window base system with report writing capabilities

         21  over a decade ago.

         22                 As for the data maintained on the

         23  CAMA system, individual assessors still need to

         24  collect the data on alterations, new construction

         25  and demolition of real property. They also need to
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          2  note sales of residential property and compared the

          3  condition of recently sold property to similar

          4  parcels.

          5                 Many times the sale of a deteriorated

          6  house could skew the model for similar parcels. The

          7  same goes for parcels that have unnoted improvements

          8  that would increase the sale price.

          9                 This kind of error is common when

         10  assessors are required to inspect parcels once every

         11  three years instead of every year. The result of

         12  such changes has reduced the accuracy of the tax

         13  roll every year since 1991.

         14                 The reduction of district size is

         15  crucial towards the proper assessment of property in

         16  New York City. Some may cynically believe that by

         17  having assessors under-assess parcels, the result is

         18  a tax break for those lucky individuals. The fact is

         19  that the needed levy is an absolute tax against all

         20  the taxable property of the City.

         21                 Those owners that are under-assessed

         22  benefit at the expense of all the remaining owners.

         23  By some estimates the parcels in New York City are

         24  under-assessed by at least 30 percent. That figure I

         25  received from the Real Estate Certiary Bar website,
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          2  which says that the equalization rate from the sales

          3  samples are result in equalization rate of actually

          4  25 to 30 percent, not the actual 45 percent target

          5  ratio.

          6                 An inequitable tax roll undermines

          7  the integrity of the City and hinders its ability to

          8  collect taxes, to collect all the taxes owed to the

          9  jurisdiction.

         10                 Nassau County is now spending

         11  millions of dollars for a private company to correct

         12  the errors as a result of systematically

         13  under-funding the assessment office. The county has

         14  just had its bond rating reduced to just above a

         15  junk bond rating. To prevent New York City from

         16  heading down the same road of financial crisis that

         17  Nassau County is on, please pass Intro. 954.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any questions?

         20                 Ms. Pinkett.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I believe

         22  these questions were, this response happens to be in

         23  part to the questions I asked. And you mentioned,

         24  Ohio, I always find it interesting that we take

         25  Ohio, which is a much smaller state, and make a
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          2  response to a community that has absolutely no

          3  relevance to New York City. I find that very

          4  interesting.

          5                 Secondly, we mention Nassau and the

          6  fact that the junk bonds, and we don't want to go

          7  down that road. I believe New York City started the

          8  junk bonds and Nassau followed us, and they went

          9  downhill.

         10                 So, I don't know the relevancy of

         11  that statement. But I've read your response and I

         12  understand the need for this response that you must

         13  give. I disagree with it. I don't condemn you for

         14  it, I accept the fact that you gave a response. I

         15  don't think you could say, if you go into that area,

         16  that any of this would apply to that particular area

         17  that I question you about. But thank you for your

         18  effort to provide a response of some sort.

         19                 MR. MOOG: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No other

         21  questions? Thank you so much, gentlemen.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

         23  Chairman?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. McCaffrey,

         25  you have a question?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

          3  Chairman, I support this totally. This is something

          4  that would be good policy for us in the City. These

          5  have been very constructive suggestions that have

          6  been offered, and, so, I just offer my two cents on

          7  this before we move on to the next topic.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         10  much, gentlemen.

         11                 MR. JOSEPH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         12  Committee members.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now we will begin

         14  the order of business.

         15                 David.

         16                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Good afternoon. I'm

         17  David Pechefsky from the City Council Finance

         18  Division.

         19                 If you will look at the memo from

         20  myself to Chairman Berman, you will see that there

         21  are two Land Use items today up for partial tax

         22  exemption from real property taxes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The first one is

         24  LU 1227, it is one building, one unit, it's a

         25  20-year exemption. The 20-year total exemption is
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          2  $20,700; is that correct?

          3                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: 1228 is a

          5  Partnership for the new homes L&M Equity, Grant

          6  Avenue, between East 167th Street and East 169th

          7  Street, Council Member Foster's district. Twenty-six

          8  buildings, 78 apartments, it's a 20-year exemption,

          9  and the total 20-year exemption is $1,290,000.

         10                 MR. PECHEFSKY: That's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And I assume

         12  Council Member Wooten and Council Member Foster have

         13  consented?

         14                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Yes, they approve of

         15  these.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         17  questions?

         18                 Thank you. We're in recess for a few

         19  moments.

         20                 (Recess taken.)

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, ladies

         22  and gentlemen, if I can have your attention, please.

         23                 We're reconvening this session of the

         24  Finance Committee, that was recessed a trifle

         25  earlier.
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          2                 Let me, first of all, greet some of

          3  the newly-elected members who will be presiding in

          4  these halls beginning January 1st and I welcome you

          5  to this session, and I wish you luck and I wish you

          6  great happiness and great success in your career,

          7  and I say that very sincerely from the bottom of my

          8  heart.

          9                 Let me also say to the members of

         10  this Committee that it has been an extraordinary

         11  pleasure, having served as a Finance Chair, since

         12  1990, I believe that together we have really

         13  accomplished some extraordinary things in this City.

         14  I believe very strongly that together we have made

         15  the lives of the people of this City better. I

         16  believe very strongly that we have caused this City

         17  to progress to a point where we are today, facing

         18  the tragedy of September 11th in a manner which will

         19  hopefully, but I know quickly, resolve itself so

         20  that the City will soon return to fiscal health, and

         21  I dare say that in 1975, and some periods of time

         22  during the eighties, had we had to face what

         23  occurred on September 11th, I don't believe that the

         24  City would have been able to come out of it as we

         25  can now.
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          2                 I would like to say to the members of

          3  the Finance staff, both expense and capital, that

          4  you're an extraordinary bunch of people, and I want

          5  to thank you for the incredible work that you've

          6  done. Haeda, this is for you and your staff.

          7                 It's absolutely amazing, with the

          8  handful of people, something over 40 fiscal

          9  analysts, this Council has been able to involve

         10  ourselves intimately in creating policy, doing

         11  revenues, economic forecasts, we've been able to

         12  compete significantly with OMB and the Comptroller's

         13  Office in doing our analysis, and that's only with a

         14  handful of people who were very dedicated and loyal.

         15                 So, I'm very, very proud of the job

         16  you've done and I want to thank you for having

         17  granted me the privilege of working with each and

         18  every one of the staff people, both present and

         19  past, who during this past almost 12 years, have

         20  enabled us to function.

         21                 So, my colleagues on the Committee, I

         22  want to thank you for allowing me to continue as the

         23  leader of this Committee. I want to thank you for

         24  your cooperation. I want to thank you for your

         25  creativity, because the bottom line has always been
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          2  what is best for the people of the City of New York,

          3  and I think that we've met that mandate. So, ladies

          4  and gentlemen, thank you so much. You have much to

          5  be proud of. We all have a lot to be proud of.

          6                 I think as we leave government,

          7  certainly as we leave this Committee and this

          8  Council, we leave this City better than the way we

          9  found it, and for that we have a lot to be proud of.

         10                 So, I want to thank everybody, and we

         11  have the opportunity now to deal finally with this

         12  budget modification, which as everybody knows, has

         13  occupied our time and our efforts over the last

         14  week, and it is perhaps fitting that we can deal

         15  with this and at least partially restore some

         16  vitally needed services to the City of New York,

         17  which after all has been, I believe, the hallmark of

         18  our history as a Council.

         19                 So, thank you, again, ladies and

         20  gentlemen. And having said that, and by the way, to

         21  my counsel, who has become a great friend, he's an

         22  extraordinary person, as well, and I will miss him.

         23  I will miss the people in the capital division who

         24  have been extraordinary, as well, and the expense

         25  people, again, you really are terrific, and I thank
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          2  you for your work.

          3                 Having said that, I'd ask each of you

          4  to identify yourselves, and then let's get on with

          5  the operation of government.

          6                 DR. ANGELO: Larian Angelo, City

          7  Council Finance.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Doctor.

          9                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Frank Tramontano,

         10  Deputy Director, City Council Finance.

         11                 MS. MIHALTSES: Haeda Mihaltses,

         12  Director of the City Council Finance Division.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Who's going to

         14  testify?

         15                 MS. MIHALTSES: We'll all testify.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Then you have to

         17  use the mic.

         18                 MS. MIHALTSES: Yes, okay. I'm sorry.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         20                 MS. MIHALTSES: If I can just say one

         21  word. On behalf of the 41 members of the Finance

         22  Division, Councilman, it's been truly an honor and a

         23  privilege to work with you, the members of the

         24  Finance Committee and the 51 members of the Council.

         25  We wish everyone the best of luck, and hopefully our
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          2  paths will cross again in the future.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

          4                 MS. MIHALTSES: What we have before

          5  us, we have actually two modifications, we have MN

          6  3, and MN 4. MN 3 is the expense modification, MN 4

          7  is the revenue modification.

          8                 Larian Angelo will explain MN 4 and

          9  Frank Tramontano will explain MN 3. I think the best

         10  way to start is with MN 4, which is the revenue

         11  modification.

         12                 DR. ANGELO: This modification, MN 4,

         13  seeks to recognize a net decrease in revenues of

         14  $595 million, approximately.

         15                 You get to that number by

         16  incorporating approximately $1.1 billion of decline

         17  in tax revenues, approximately $231 million decline

         18  in miscellaneous revenue budget.

         19                 On the plus side, there is a

         20  recognition of about $428 million in unrestricted

         21  aid, most of which will go towards the clean-up

         22  efforts for the World Trade Center.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is that a

         24  progressive -- is that in the future or is that

         25  reimbursement for past?
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          2                 DR. ANGELO: It's in anticipation of

          3  reimbursement.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's a great

          5  line.

          6                 Again, does that mean that we're

          7  being reimbursed for expenses already made? Or does

          8  it mean that that will be --

          9                 MR. TRAMONTANO: This plan has

         10  incorporated all the expenses that the

         11  Administration feels should be reimbursed by the

         12  federal government.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: To date?

         14                 DR. ANGELO: To date.

         15                 MR. TRAMONTANO: To date that they

         16  have. To date that they have, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh. So, it's not

         18  for what's expected to be costing us in February and

         19  March?

         20                 DR. ANGELO: Right.

         21                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's right.

         22                 DR. ANGELO: No, no. We don't have the

         23  money in-hand yet, but it's only acknowledging

         24  expenses to date.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right.
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          2                 So, in other words, the

          3  Administration says that we know we're going to get

          4  this amount of money, hence we will budget for it.

          5                 DR. ANGELO: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So we're

          7  declaring it as revenues?

          8                 DR. ANGELO: Yes. It's a reasonable

          9  anticipation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         11                 Please go ahead.

         12                 DR. ANGELO: There's an increase in

         13  210 million of prior year payables and the

         14  recognition that the tax program that the Council

         15  and the Mayor sent up to Albany in June at budget

         16  adoption doesn't stand a very good chance of

         17  passage. So, that $100 million has been put back

         18  into the revenue budget.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, they're

         20  accepting the realization that our tax package is

         21  not going to fly?

         22                 DR. ANGELO: Right. In addition,

         23  should it somehow pass the State Legislature, all of

         24  those programs were authorization, so that even if

         25  the State did pass it at this point, the next
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          2  Council would have the local authority to pass or

          3  not enact those tax programs.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, is there

          5  any questions on the revenue mod?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ronnie.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Does this

          9  now --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I'm sorry. Ms.

         11  Eldridge.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Let me just

         13  say that I'm really sorry that I never had the

         14  pleasure to serve with you on this Committee. I

         15  tried, but I never got the pleasure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ronnie, it would

         17  have been my pleasure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: All right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: But that never

         20  inhibited your participation.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I just

         22  wanted to ask again about the surcharge, the

         23  personal income tax; is that reflected in these

         24  figures?

         25                 DR. ANGELO: No. The reduction in the
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          2  personal income tax surcharge is still in effect up

          3  until December 31st of this year.

          4                 Therefore, that additional money that

          5  will occur --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Sunsets

          7  after December 31.

          8                 DR. ANGELO: Yes, that's correct.

          9                 So, the additional money that will

         10  flow into the revenue budget, should the new Council

         11  not reenact that cut, is not recognized in the

         12  personal income tax money at the point.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And that

         14  would be estimated at how much?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: $181 million for

         16  the balance of this fiscal year, $362 million for

         17  the balance of the next fiscal year.

         18                 Now, that relates to the other half

         19  of the personal income tax surcharge; is that

         20  correct?

         21                 DR. ANGELO: That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Ronnie?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Yes, thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any other
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          2  questions on revenue?

          3                 Thank you, Doctor.

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Okay, MN 3 --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You have a

          6  question, sir?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: On the World

          8  Trade Center related money, is there some way to get

          9  the specifics related to these numbers, in terms of

         10  what specifically -- I know some of it is I guess

         11  related to the overtime that the police are doing in

         12  the Fire Department and others --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You want the

         14  details of the anticipated?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Could you

         16  detail this for me at some point?

         17                 DR. ANGELO: Yes, we can get you a

         18  detailed list, yes. Absolutely. Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, this is

         20  the Administration's representation of what we

         21  should be getting from FEMA, because of the World

         22  Trade Center, right?

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes, that's correct.

         24                 DR. ANGELO: The Administration's

         25  reasonable assumption on the money we've spent to
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          2  date that they feel will be reimbursable by FEMA.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, do we

          4  get any input in that at all, any kind of review of

          5  that, to determine whether it's whatever?

          6                 DR. ANGELO: I believe that the

          7  Administration will strive to get as much reimbursed

          8  as possible, and there are rules with FEMA and they

          9  will negotiate with FEMA.

         10                 MS. MIHALTSES: And the Council held

         11  two hearings on oversight through the Federal and

         12  State Legislation Committee and Economic Development

         13  Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Perkins, if

         15  you're referring to whether or not this Committee

         16  has exercised oversight of the specific amounts, the

         17  answer is no.

         18                 That certainly does not inhibit that

         19  from taking place.

         20                 The State and Federal Legislation

         21  Committee and the Economic Development Committee did

         22  have hearings, we brought FEMA in, and we brought

         23  OMB in and they did testify to the expenses that led

         24  to this amount.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But we don't
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          2  have any formal input, so-to-speak?

          3                 DR. ANGELO: Basically, essentially

          4  it's determined by FEMA rules.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I was just

          6  wondering if there's a way for the Administration to

          7  work with us in terms of some of this, that's all.

          8                 But if I could get that, you know,

          9  the specifics related to it, I would appreciate it.

         10                 DR. ANGELO: Yes. We would be happy to

         11  send it over to you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         13                 Mr. Spigner.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes, Mr.

         15  Chairman. Back when we enacted the budget, OMB

         16  included, or assigned a lot of DOB money to the Fire

         17  Department, reflecting an anticipated transfer of

         18  inspection responsibilities from the DOB, the Fire

         19  Department.

         20                 It was our intention that this action

         21  required, that this change would require legislation

         22  by the City Council.

         23                 Now, I see reference here, could you

         24  explain on page 59, the Department of Buildings, and

         25  also the -- yes, that's right, page 59 and page 60.
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          2                 MS. MIHALTSES: Councilman, when we

          3  get to MN 3 you will see that the actions have been

          4  reversed in this modification.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Oh, we're not

          6  on MN 3.

          7                 MS. MIHALTSES: No, we're not. But

          8  it's correct, the actions have been reversed in this

          9  modification.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Spigner,

         11  we're on the revenue mod now.

         12                 Any other questions?

         13                 All right. Thank you, again.

         14                 Frank, we'll go to the expense mod.

         15                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Okay. The expense

         16  modification, MN 3, makes reductions that implement

         17  the November plan that the Mayor put forth, that

         18  we're agreeing on here. The net result is that

         19  there's $526 million being added to the general

         20  reserve that then gets removed with MN 4 in the

         21  revenue mod. So, in the net effect, this

         22  modification decreases the budget by $526 million,

         23  plus $29 million that's added to the budget

         24  stabilization account.

         25                 The best way I guess to look at the
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          2  effects on each agency would be a long piece of

          3  paper which shows the tos and froms in each agency,

          4  and in addition to that, the details on the big

          5  packet, MN 3.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: On the long

          7  sheet, would you just describe each column?

          8                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Okay. The first

          9  column is the agency's name, then you see the froms,

         10  and that represents what got reduced in that agency,

         11  the total amount, and then the tos, and that

         12  represents what got put back into that agency, and

         13  the details of that can be found in the MN 3 large

         14  document that we prepared for you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, the total

         16  column is the from subtracted from the to?

         17                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. Ladies

         19  and gentlemen, if you like, you may take a few

         20  moments to go through the book, and if you have any

         21  specific questions to ask, then now is the time to

         22  do it.

         23                 While we're waiting, Ms. Pinkett has

         24  a question.

         25                 And in the meantime, please go
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          2  through the book so you can identify your questions

          3  or issues.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So this is a

          5  21 --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I'm sorry, Ms.

          7  Wooten. Ms. Wooten is first. I made a mistake.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Haeda, this

          9  $21 million shift --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Archie. Hold it,

         11  Archie.

         12                 Ms. Wooten.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I just want to

         14  briefly note, in looking over the Board of Ed

         15  modification, most of that, or just give me a

         16  percentage. Haeda, I just need a percentage that

         17  impacts on collective bargaining. I noted there's a

         18  lot of mods in there that relates to collective

         19  bargaining, I just need to know the percentage.

         20                 MS. MIHALTSES: Okay, there are two

         21  actions. About 40 million is reflective of

         22  collective bargaining, and --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Haeda, would you

         24  use the mic.

         25                 MS. MIHALTSES: I'm sorry, Councilman,
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          2  I thought I was.

          3                 There are two actions that relate to

          4  collective bargaining, one is a $40 million action,

          5  the second is a $48 million action that is

          6  transferring to the pension system.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: And this all

          8  relates to the collective bargaining piece of it?

          9                 MS. MIHALTSES: That's correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: The complete

         11  budget modification?

         12                 MS. MIHALTSES: Forty million and 48

         13  million, so $88 million of it does.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: And this is

         15  between how many unions.

         16                 MR. TRAMONTANO: This is the pattern

         17  for all the civilians.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I didn't ask

         19  that question. I want to know the number of -- you

         20  don't have to go into detail, I just want to know

         21  the number of unions that is involved in this

         22  collective bargaining piece.

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's all the unions,

         24  it's CWA, it's SEIU, it's DC 37.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: In other
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          2  words, it's all the unions that impact on the Board

          3  of Education.

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes, all the unions.

          5                 MS. MIHALTSES: With the exception of

          6  UFT, Councilwoman.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I know that's

          8  a separation.

          9                 Okay, thank you.

         10                 MS. MIHALTSES: Okay, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ms.

         12  Wooten, and then Ms. Eisland.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Do we have

         14  something in writing from the New York Public

         15  Libraries about the, you know, kind of creative

         16  arrangement.  I had asked the libraries directly for

         17  that. It would be helpful to have that document.

         18                 MS. MIHALTSES: What the Councilwoman

         19  is referring to, there was a $26 million cut to the

         20  three branches of the library system. The libraries

         21  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: This will go a

         23  lot faster if you give me your cooperation and try

         24  -- I know that you're looking at the books, but

         25  please try to keep your voices down.
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          2                 MS. MIHALTSES: There was a $26

          3  million cut to the three branches of the library

          4  which include New York Public, Research, Queens and

          5  Brooklyn. The three branches have approached the

          6  Council and they realize that the City is facing a

          7  downturn in revenue and some tough economic times

          8  within the next couple of years, and they have all

          9  put something on the table and the Administration

         10  has accepted it.

         11                 They are offering to do a three to

         12  one match. For every dollar that the libraries

         13  raise, as a system, the City will match that by $3.

         14  So, we were able to restore $10 million of the $26

         15  million cut, and the libraries have the ability to

         16  go and raise another $4 million so they could make

         17  up for the 16.

         18                 The agreement, I don't have anything

         19  in writing, the agreement was reached today with the

         20  Administration and the Council, and it's our hope

         21  that this commitment does go through.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: And is it

         23  possible to get that before the Stated Council? Is

         24  it possible to get a copy of that before the Stated

         25  Council?
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          2                 MS. MIHALTSES: I mean, I can give you

          3  a memorandum of understanding that we've sent to the

          4  Administration, but I don't know --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes, that

          6  would be great, if I can see that in writing.

          7                 MS. MIHALTSES: Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Ms.

          9  Eisland.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.

         11  Can you just review what the effect on the community

         12  colleges is going to be?

         13                 MS. MIHALTSES: The cut to the

         14  community college eliminated the Council Scholarship

         15  Program. This mod reverses that action and puts back

         16  the $3.5 million to the Council scholarship program.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: But what is

         18  the aggregate effect of other cuts for the community

         19  colleges?

         20                 MS. MIHALTSES: There was a study that

         21  CUNY is now funding internally for the minority and

         22  business entrepreneur study, and there was some

         23  money that was put in to do a John Jay Certificate

         24  Program, which was not restored.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. MIHALTSES: You're welcome.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          4  other questions?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I have a

          6  question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Tracy.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I have two

         10  questions, actually.

         11                 The first question is on the

         12  Department of Aging.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Tracy, speak

         14  closer into your mic.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Can you hear

         16  me? On the Department of Aging, the first concern,

         17  when we started off last year, we adopted a budget

         18  that gave one social worker per City Council

         19  district, now it's been cut. Give me some clarity on

         20  this. Every senior center throughout the City gets a

         21  social worker, does that mean that if there are 12

         22  senior centers operating in my district that --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, I'm sorry,

         24  that's inaccurate. Wasn't it every district?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I'm reading
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          2  it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, I'm sorry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: What does

          5  that mean?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Peter.

          7                 MR. BRUNO: Peter Bruno, from the

          8  Council Finance Division.

          9                 Originally the City Council allocated

         10  funding for one social worker in each district,

         11  however, given the large number of senior centers in

         12  certain districts, that wasn't deemed to be a useful

         13  way to divide the funding or the social workers. So,

         14  DFTA went back to the drawing board and said if we

         15  were to do this project, we would need to allocate

         16  social workers basically more along the community

         17  board model, and the way that worked out was about

         18  for every six senior centers there would be a social

         19  worker who would be basically a roving individual

         20  that would be able to go to each center a suitable

         21  number of times.

         22                 The funding was reduced partly

         23  because there was a delay in getting the program

         24  going. DFTA wasn't sure how it was going to work,

         25  whether it was going to be one per district or how
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          2  they were going to divide it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: They put out

          4  a proposal and everything, because I have senior

          5  centers that responded to it a year ago.

          6                 MR. BRUNO: They put out the original

          7  proposal but then they have to resubmit it to do the

          8  more equitable formula.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Again, my

         10  question is, so if there are 12 senior centers in my

         11  district and if my district receives two social

         12  workers --

         13                 MR. BRUNO: You should receive two

         14  social workers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: This is the

         16  equivalent or more comparable to the older plan

         17  which is 51 new social workers.

         18                 MR. BRUNO: No, no. We're not going

         19  back to the old plan.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         21                 MR. BRUNO: We're going to stick with

         22  the revised plan.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: In terms of

         24  everyone receiving the same services? I just want to

         25  make sure that is clear.
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          2                 My next question is, on the minority

          3  business study, who is actually -- it was less than

          4  $250,000, who at CUNY --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Speak into the

          6  mic.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Haeda is

          8  looking at me. Can you hear me, Haeda?

          9                 MS. MIHALTSES: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Yes, she can, but

         11  the rest of the members can't.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Can you all

         13  hear me?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now we can.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh, good.

         16                 On the minority business study, the

         17  last concern we had, the question we were asking is

         18  in regards to that study, that it was less than

         19  $250,000, it was cut from our budget and given to

         20  CUNY; who is CUNY is going to do this program?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Excuse me. Mr.

         22  McCaffrey wants to ask a question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: My

         24  colleague, last night Council Member Clarke and I

         25  had a conversation with Barbara Fife at Baruch,
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          2  since the two of us had carried that in the

          3  contract, so-to-speak, of getting it into the

          4  budget, we were concerned that they do that.

          5  Barbara, as you may recall, had done the previous

          6  WBMB studies during the Dinkins Administration.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: So she has

          9  considerable knowledge and has a body of the

         10  material already there, and we are suggesting some

         11  individuals for her to have sort of --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And Baruch was

         13  going to self-fund it, right?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And Baruch

         15  will end up doing it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, Barbara

         17  Fife. Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Perkins.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         20  to get some clarification.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: On the long

         23  sheet where it says City Council 102773 is from, and

         24  769840 to, and then it's 3,975 I guess deficit; what

         25  is that about?
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          2                 MR. TRAMONTANO: They represent

          3  transfers from one part of U of A from the City

          4  Council to another because our Administration needed

          5  money in different areas to change the budget, the

          6  details of which I don't have. But the $3,000 --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: From one part

          8  of the Council to another part -- the Unit of

          9  Appropriation of the Council to another part?

         10                 MS. MIHALTSES: It's within the

         11  Council's budget.

         12                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's within the

         13  Council's budget. It moved within the Council's

         14  budget to pay for expenses in one area that they

         15  needed as opposed to another. It was done by the

         16  Administration and the Council. We didn't see that.

         17                 The $3,975 difference represents the

         18  heat and lighting power savings that we put in. I

         19  don't have the details of the switch, but I can get

         20  it to you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, then

         24  Ms. Eldridge.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You're welcome,

          4  Mr. Michels.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you have

          6  been a very good chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you. It's

          8  very kind of you to say that. I really didn't expect

          9  it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the staff

         11  has really been terrific.

         12                 I would like to ask a question on the

         13  culturals.

         14                 The money that's going back, the

         15  $5,400,000 for the cultural groups, the programs I

         16  guess, is that a full restoration?

         17                 MS. MIHALTSES: That's a full

         18  restoration.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It's a full

         20  restoration, but it's not a full restoration for the

         21  sigs (phonetic), right?

         22                 MS. MIHALTSES: The cut to the

         23  cultural institutions was $11.1 million, we have

         24  restored $1.5 million.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And what
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          2  percentage does that remain a cut?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Your question was

          4  --

          5                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's about 10 percent

          6  --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now it's

          8  about a 10 percent cut?

          9                 MR. TRAMONTANO: -- Of their cut got

         10  put back.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The sig was not

         12  restored.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Not fully

         14  restored, but this reduces the cut.

         15                 MS. MIHALTSES: Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, it's only

         17  about --

         18                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Approximately a 12

         19  percent cut.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Twelve, 13

         21  percent, okay.

         22                 And just so we understand, we have

         23  not restored money, and I wanted to just -- on the

         24  issue of emergency repairs, and I understand this is

         25  for private housing, but our intention is to use CD
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          2  money for that?

          3                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's correct.

          4                 The Department has told us that any

          5  emergency repairs that need to get done, CD funds

          6  are available.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We really

          8  haven't lost any programs at all, as far as the cuts

          9  are concerned?

         10                 MR. TRAMONTANO: No.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Eldridge,

         14  then Ms. Koslowitz.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I just

         16  wanted to say for the record, I noticed the CUNY

         17  system, and I'm not begrudging the CUNY system any

         18  City tax levy funds, but they were denied state tax

         19  funds and instead were substituting City tax levy.

         20                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That was an agreement

         21  that was made at adoption. If you remember, CUNY was

         22  saying, we need this money, the Council was trying

         23  to restore the money for them. We accepted not

         24  restoring the money because the City told us that

         25  they could get these state funds. The City promised
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          2  that if they couldn't get the state funds, they

          3  would put in City dollars. This is as a result of

          4  that promise. The state dollars never happened, the

          5  City made whole on their promise.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I understand

          7  that. But then let's turn it the other way and go to

          8  child care, that I think that there is, it's a

          9  question as to whether it's $71 million of TANF

         10  funding, or $83 million of TANF funding that's

         11  supposed to go to child care, to the expansion of

         12  child care, the subsidy spots, since we have a

         13  waiting list of over 30,000, that TANF money, which

         14  is coming from the State to the City earmarked for

         15  that is being taken away from the child care and put

         16  some place else.

         17                 So, how do we explain this?

         18                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's the

         19  Administration doing what they feel is necessary to

         20  take care of the budget problem.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And did we

         22  as a Council say we don't want this?

         23                 MR. TRAMONTANO: We said we want more

         24  day care in everything we do, we want more day care

         25  slots. But we didn't put up that money, they put up
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          2  that money.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Right.

          4                 MR. TRAMONTANO: And on the same token

          5  took that money away.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Then the

          7  next question is in adult services for, and I

          8  wondered about how much money has been reinstated

          9  for rent supplements.

         10                 I mean, we've all read in the paper

         11  this past week that the City is now proposing to

         12  award families $500 a month if they move out of a

         13  shelter, and, yet, we've cut -- they've cut, we've

         14  restored some of it, but have we restored all of the

         15  rent supplement money?

         16                 MS. MIHALTSES: We've restored the

         17  Family Rental Assistance Program that was -- sorry.

         18  We've restored the Family Rental Assistance Program

         19  $902,000 of what was cut through this plan. We did

         20  not restore accruals that were in this program, and

         21  I need to get back to you on how much money is being

         22  allocated as a result of giving each family the

         23  $500.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And then

         25  also I see that TANF or Emergency Food Assistance
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          2  Program, that they're being cut $4,570,000; what

          3  does that mean? Is that being substituted?

          4                 MS. MIHALTSES: Councilwoman, what

          5  page are you on?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Page 34.

          7                 MS. MIHALTSES: Okay.

          8                 MR. TRAMONTANO: They're going to

          9  replace that with TANF funds. So, the service is not

         10  going to be denied, it's just the funds that are

         11  going to pay for it are TANF, as opposed to City

         12  dollars.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Now, under

         14  adult services there's a line that says accrual due

         15  to contract delay.

         16                 As you know, some of us are very

         17  concerned about some of these small agencies that

         18  have been operating without a contract and without

         19  being paid. They're now claiming a savings of

         20  $650,000 due to accrual delays; what does that mean?

         21  And who is affected by that, and where are we since

         22  we last discussed this?

         23                 MS. MIHALTSES: It's the delays as a

         24  result of the shelter, the domestic violence beds

         25  that haven't gone on line yet, that's where you get
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          2  the accrual from.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And how many

          4  other accrual delays are there like that for

          5  programs through the budget; do you know?

          6                 MS. MIHALTSES: I don't know. I have

          7  not added them up.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Koslowitz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         11                 I just want to know the reduction in

         12  licensing and enforcement; what does that exactly

         13  mean in Consumer Affairs?

         14                 MS. MIHALTSES: If you give us a

         15  minute, Councilwoman.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Do you have

         17  the same book I do?

         18                 MS. MIHALTSES: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Page 82.

         20                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Licensing

         21  enforcement. No, these are just personal service

         22  accruals.

         23                 MS. MIHALTSES: Right, they're just

         24  accruals.

         25                 MR. TRAMONTANO: They're just people
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          2  that they didn't hire when they expected to hire

          3  them.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: That's 188,

          5  but what's the 230?

          6                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Existing vacancies.

          7                 MR. MIHALTSES: The total for the Unit

          8  of Appropriation is 230. If you add up the 188 and

          9  the 42, you've got accruals totalling $230,000.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Okay, thank

         11  you.

         12                 MS. MIHALTSES: You're welcome.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Pinkett.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: My question

         15  relates to Medicare Part B.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Pinkett, can

         17  you draw the mic closer, please.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you.

         19                 Can you hear me now?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you. My

         22  question relates to Medicare Part B. I know that

         23  money was placed in the budget for Medicare Part B

         24  in 2001. I'm concerned about this year 2002. Has

         25  money been placed in the budget to fund Medicare
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          2  Part B for the Year 2002?

          3                 MR. TRAMONTANO: No, there's no money

          4  in this current year budget, even though we passed

          5  the law, because the Administration is taking us to

          6  court onto the legality of the law. But I might want

          7  to add that the reason why there's money in 2001 was

          8  because they were forced to accrue it. It's not the

          9  administration didn't put the money in willingly,

         10  they were forced to accrue it by the Comptroller's

         11  Office because we passed a law that requires

         12  funding.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay, would

         14  you repeat the last part of that again, please?

         15                 MR. TRAMONTANO: For Fiscal Year 2001,

         16  they didn't put the money in willingly, they were

         17  forced to put in the money because the Comptroller

         18  recognized it as a liability because the Council

         19  passed the law and the Administration had to put

         20  money in the budget to pay for that law.

         21                 We expect that would be the similar

         22  case in 2002, if it doesn't get resolved in the

         23  courts, that the Comptroller will take the same

         24  position and feel that the money has to be put in

         25  the budget to adhere to the law that we passed.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: What would

          3  trigger action, besides the Comptroller recognizing

          4  it? We're going to have a new Comptroller who will

          5  come into office, is there other -- we feel that

          6  there must be other action taken.

          7                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Well, I believe there

          8  is a court case going on now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Now, I've

         10  spoken to the Speaker, and I know that the Council,

         11  the City Council, has-- is there a gavel somewhere,

         12  Mr. Chairman, that we can use, so we can hear?

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 I know that the Speaker has indicated

         15  that the Council is involved in a lawsuit with

         16  District Councils 37 to institute a lawsuit in order

         17  to compel the Mayor to put in the monies in the

         18  budget to protect that legislation, to make sure

         19  that money is there, and that is supposed to be done

         20  with, I started to say all deliberate speed, but

         21  that's very bad, that's a bad phrase. That should

         22  start as quickly as possible. Will that help us in

         23  this budget situation?

         24                 MR. TRAMONTANO: For the budget

         25  purposes, if the Administration loses the lawsuit
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          2  they will be forced to put the money in the budget.

          3  But until that action happens, they refuse to put

          4  the money in because they believe the law should not

          5  -- we don't have the authority to pass the law, so,

          6  therefore, the law shouldn't be honored.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Hell, they used

          8  Westway for about 15 years.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: And the

         10  amount that we're talking about for the year would

         11  be approximately what?

         12                 MR. TRAMONTANO: I believe it's

         13  approximately $25 million.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Twenty-five

         15  million. All right, thank you very much.

         16                 MR. TRAMONTANO: You're welcome.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Eldridge,

         18  then Ms. Quinn, then Ms. Marshall.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Would you

         20  just look at page 53 and explain to me what they're

         21  saying in the Youth Services OTPS.

         22                 It delays the awarding of contracts?

         23  I mean, what does it say here about that?

         24                 MR. TRAMONTANO: These contracts are

         25  now eliminated. They won't be happening.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Fiscal 2003.

          3                 MS. MIHALTSES: It was our hope when

          4  these contracts were being let out in 2002 we would

          5  expand it by $2 million. They were never let, we

          6  never got the chance to expand, the Administration

          7  is now taking that money.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: Then would

          9  you just clarify with the World Trade Center

         10  overtime reimbursement in the Police Department, it

         11  specifies that there was $14.6 million overtime for

         12  the 20-day period from September 11th to September

         13  30th, and that they're now expecting federal

         14  reimbursement, but is that federal reimbursement

         15  going to go beyond September 30th?

         16                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes. This is --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: And where

         18  will that be reflected?

         19                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's in different

         20  spots. You'll see it in other parts of the Operation

         21  -- there's overtime savings.

         22                 Actually, the World Trade Center

         23  overtime money in the budget for the Police

         24  Department beyond September 30th appears as what

         25  they call a "revenue peg." So, it's money we have in
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          2  our budget that we expect to continue to pay out

          3  that the federal government is now going to pay us

          4  money on, and that money comes into the budget

          5  through other categorical aid. So, it's not any

          6  expense item, it comes in through the revenue side,

          7  and Larian had talked about the $400 million that is

          8  coming in additional categorical aid, it appears in

          9  that amount.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: But there's

         11  no assurance that all that police overtime is going

         12  to be paid for, right?

         13                 MR. TRAMONTANO: All the WTC expenses

         14  that are in this plan are the Administration's

         15  anticipation of what they believe they will get from

         16  the federal government. But very little has been

         17  signed off yet.

         18                 DR. ANGELO: And they've been in

         19  negotiations with FEMA and they're basically putting

         20  up money that they have a reasonable expectation of

         21  getting. But it's always uncertain when you deal

         22  with the federal government.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I just have

         24  one final question.

         25                 I'm always interested in the
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          2  mayoralty and how much oversight we have. I read,

          3  and I think, that members of the Mayor's staff

          4  receive salary increases about a month or two months

          5  ago, and then the Mayor has -- then there's the

          6  money that comes out for different things. Where

          7  does that show up? Is there a U of A for that? How

          8  do you ever find out what that's all about?

          9                 MR. TRAMONTANO: I've never really

         10  focused on the Mayor's budget.

         11                 I believe the specific area of

         12  salaries in the Mayor's budget relate to the

         13  specific U of A that the salary, the person would be

         14  funded from, and, so, if you need to know the

         15  specific --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Why don't you try

         17  to get that information. In the meantime, with your

         18  permission, Ms. Eldridge, we can proceed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ELDRIDGE: I'm just

         20  wondering where -- to find out also where the $2.5

         21  million to purchase the Broadway theater tickets

         22  comes from? Where does that come from?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, you

         24  find that out and provide that information, okay?

         25                 Thank you, Ms. Eldridge.
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          2                 Mr. Spigner.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Quinn and

          6  then Ms. Marshall.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: As it relates

          8  to the new money for the Department of Buildings,

          9  can we assume that since the money is now being put

         10  into the Department of Buildings' budget, is it with

         11  the understanding that the administrative effort on

         12  the part of the Mayor to transfer these inspectional

         13  services to the Fire Department has been

         14  discontinued?

         15                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's correct. It's

         16  back as a DOB function from now on.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 I want to go over the Department of

         21  Health, and a couple of particular programs. If you

         22  can tell me what the status of the cuts to the

         23  family clinics is?

         24                 MS. MIHALTSES: $2.8 million has been

         25  restored to the Family Health Service Clinics.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Is that a full

          3  restoration of what the Mayor had proposed to take

          4  out?

          5                 MS. MIHALTSES: I would have to check.

          6                 Yes, it is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

          8                 And also in DOH, the money for the

          9  community healthcare network for their clinics?

         10                 MS. MIHALTSES: Correct, Councilwoman,

         11  that's a full restoration.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And with the

         13  money to fund the medication, the pharmaceutical

         14  medication waivers at the pharmacy clinics, what's

         15  the status on that?

         16                 MS. MIHALTSES: There's a million

         17  dollars that's being restored with the hopes of

         18  getting some Title 20 money.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is that the

         20  promise program?

         21                 MS. MIHALTSES: No, she's talking

         22  about the outpatient medication.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Oh, the other

         24  one, okay.

         25                 MS. MIHALTSES: Yes. In the Department
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          2  of Health that's administered through HHC.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's a

          4  deductible reimbursement?

          5                 MS. MIHALTSES: That helps people who

          6  have been discharged from HHC facilities with their

          7  medication.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: This isn't the

          9  discharge program, this is the program for the

         10  outpatient --

         11                 MS. MIHALTSES: The outpatient, yes.

         12  I'm sorry, the outpatient medication.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The outpatient

         14  program, right.

         15                 And, so, we're putting a million back

         16  in with the anticipation that it will remain a $3

         17  million program because of other federal monies?

         18                 MS. MIHALTSES: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What about the

         20  $5 million for people of color HIV/AIDS Initiative?

         21                 MS. MIHALTSES: There was a cut of

         22  $2.2 million of which we're putting back a million

         23  dollars with the hope of receiving additional state

         24  and federal reimbursement.

         25                 And the same thing happens for the
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          2  infant mortality, of a $2.2 million cut, we're

          3  putting back 1.150, with the hopes of receiving

          4  additional money to match the programs.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: With the

          6  addition of the federal and state monies, is there

          7  any time frame on that, like on when we think we

          8  will know for sure?

          9                 MS. MIHALTSES: When the money is

         10  spent, that's when the money usually gets reimbursed

         11  to us.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. All

         13  right, thank you.

         14                 MS. MIHALTSES: You're welcome.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         16                 Ms. Marshall.

         17                 Mr. Perkins, please.

         18                 Ms. Marshall.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, thank

         20  you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 In looking at the reductions for the

         22  Borough Presidents, if we absorb this in Queens we

         23  will run out of money in May. That's an impossible

         24  situation for us right now, and it makes operations

         25  impossible.
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          2                 This is a 15 percent cut, if it could

          3  at least be cut a certain -- less than a 15 percent

          4  cut, we will be able to survive. It's just

          5  impossible, we're going to run out of money.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We discussed that

          7  yesterday also.

          8                 Mr. Carrion very, very eloquently

          9  brought that up yesterday.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: There's

         11  nothing that can be done about this?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: At this juncture

         13  I would say no. You know, I understand clearly. I

         14  know my Borough President is also extraordinarily

         15  distressed, probably even more so than you, he can't

         16  even go to May. It's clearly a problem, and I don't

         17  quite know how to resolve it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Well, we are

         19  the rest of this City. We cover every inch of this

         20  City as Borough Presidents.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I'm not

         22  quarreling with you, Helen.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The other

         24  issue that I have is the Staten Island Ferry. That

         25  ferry, and I understand that the Department is
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          2  hesitant about funding a subsidy for a private

          3  enterprise, but it's not under a private enterprise,

          4  it's under a non-profit, the National Gateway Park

          5  Association, and that ferry will be a lifeline to

          6  the Rockaways, which are literally cut off from the

          7  rest of the Borough, and it's a very economical

          8  cost, $5 roundtrip. It's not such a large amount of

          9  money.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We spent an

         11  extensive amount of time yesterday. Ms. Watkins had

         12  brought the issue up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes, I know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And Haeda, do you

         15  want to relate to that? The issue of the ferry? I

         16  mean, the overall sense in the Administration was

         17  that it just wasn't going to happen.

         18                 MS. MIHALTSES: The money was not

         19  going to be spent.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That the money

         21  wouldn't be spent.

         22                 I mean, it is my guess that there

         23  will be another budget modification in January and

         24  February when these issues can be revisited.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: As you know,

          3  Helen, there are a number of modifications during

          4  the course of the year, this is the first one this

          5  year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: All right.

          7  It's not acceptable, but what can I do. All right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Mr.

          9  Michels.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: But I do

         11  want to thank you for leaving the scholarships

         12  intact.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Folks, if you can

         16  just be a little bit brief.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: On behalf of

         18  Borough Presidents, I also raise the same issue on

         19  behalf of Borough President C. Virginia Fields, and

         20  we'll have to hope for that and take care of it next

         21  year.

         22                 Turning to pages 57, 58 and 59, with

         23  respect to the Department of Housing Preservation

         24  and Development, I find some very, very strange

         25  language in the budget document. It seems to say
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          2  that they would be able to hire -- there will be a

          3  hiring freeze, they will be able to hire in the area

          4  of code enforcement of emergency services, if

          5  necessary.

          6                 And then again on page 58 we again

          7  talk about the hiring code enforcement of emergency

          8  services, if necessary --

          9                 MS. MIHALTSES: Councilman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Let me

         11  finish. Then they say the agency may commit

         12  community development funds for this program, if

         13  necessary. How do you define "if necessary," and has

         14  anybody given you some idea when it becomes

         15  necessary, if not becoming necessary?

         16                 MS. MIHALTSES: Councilman, as you

         17  know, on October 19th the Mayor issued an Executive

         18  Order which essentially froze every Unit of

         19  Appropriation in PS and OTPS by 15 percent. He also,

         20  in the beginning of October issued a hiring freeze.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right.

         22                 MS. MIHALTSES: Except for areas of

         23  emergency that are deemed necessary.

         24                 One of these areas are in HPD.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right.
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          2                 MS. MIHALTSES: If they deem it

          3  necessary to hire the code enforcement people, these

          4  hires will go through.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is there any

          6  definition of when it becomes necessary? How do we

          7  determine when it becomes necessary and when it's

          8  not necessary?

          9                 MS. MIHALTSES: I can get you that

         10  information.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is that

         12  discretionary, or is there some rule on it?

         13                 MR. TRAMONTANO: It's at the agency's

         14  discretion.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It's at the

         16  agency's discretion.

         17                 MS. MIHALTSES: It's at the agency's

         18  discretion to deem an emergency.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is this the

         20  only place where we find this?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels, hold

         22  on. Stanley?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Hold on.

         25                 People, it is impossible to transact
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          2  this type of function with all of the talking. I'm

          3  asking you to please give respect to the person who

          4  has a question. We're trying to relate to this,

          5  we're trying to finish it. If you must moderate your

          6  voice downward, we'll be able to finish, please.

          7                 Mr. Michels, please.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am trying

          9  to determine when and if they will determine if

         10  something is necessary, whether it's some sort of a

         11  standard or it's just completely within the

         12  discretion of the agency, and if this was in any

         13  other place?

         14                 MR. TRAMONTANO: No. This is done

         15  particularly for this agency because I think they

         16  want to try and have the flexibility to go ahead and

         17  hire, if necessary.

         18                 So, they're doing a little bit

         19  different than other agencies. They're saying, well,

         20  we'll put up half of the cut, but we may choose to

         21  hire at a later date.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But this is

         23  sort of unusual language.

         24                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So, there's
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          2  no actual standard, it's just if it's necessary, and

          3  then, in other words, it's discretionary on the part

          4  of the Commissioner.

          5                 MR. TRAMONTANO: That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Michels.

         10                 Mr. Carrion.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Mr. Chairman,

         12  thank you very much.

         13                 I would be remiss if I didn't add my

         14  voice yet again to this 15 percent cut that's being

         15  imposed on the Borough President's budgets.

         16                 Fifteen percent in the Bronx is

         17  $1,200,000 almost. I may be off by a couple of

         18  hundred thousand dollars. That means that we can't

         19  really start an administration. That means that

         20  there's not going to be a smooth transition.

         21                 I have put in calls in this process,

         22  and I'm going out of this body, I know I'm on my way

         23  out, as is my colleague, Helen Marshall, and I know

         24  that it may not necessarily be in some people's

         25  interest for us to get funded appropriately, or it
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          2  may not be in their interest, whatever the case

          3  might be, whatever the motivation might be, we have

          4  five Borough Presidents that are chief executives of

          5  their boroughs, just like we have 52 counties in the

          6  State of New York, and there's five counties in the

          7  City of New York where we have a person that's

          8  responsible for those counties, to shepard through a

          9  civic, legislative and budget process, but I can't

         10  start my administration with this kind of cut.

         11                 And I have to tell you, we're going

         12  to have to lay people off if it's 15 percent. I

         13  think I made that very clear to you, Mr. Chairman,

         14  with all due respect, and with all due respect to my

         15  colleagues, everybody has to share in the burden of

         16  carrying us through this difficult time. When I call

         17  Deputy Mayor Joe Lhota and I'm not getting my calls

         18  responded to, I think that's disrespectful and it's

         19  certainly disrespectful to my borough. I'm having

         20  great difficulty with this. Obviously we have to

         21  cut, we have a huge deficit and future deficits, but

         22  we need to do this in a more rationale way and it's

         23  really unfair to the in-coming Borough Presidents.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I understand your

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            87

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  thinking.

          3                 All right, Ms. Quinn, you're the last

          4  person. Please try to be very brief.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Of course, I

          6  lied, I have two last questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I was told

          8  you had one last question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I know. I lied.

         10                 Two questions: The money with the HIV

         11  People of Color Initiative, do we know if that

         12  money, since -- this is not the situation there, but

         13  in many places groups have not yet actually gotten

         14  their contracts so there will be less of a period of

         15  time for those groups and other groups to actually

         16  spend the money, if there is money that they have

         17  not yet spend at the end of this fiscal year, is the

         18  anticipation that it could be rolled over and they

         19  would still be able to --

         20                 MS. MIHALTSES: We could work, we

         21  could certainly work with -- well, whoever the

         22  Finance Division is can work with the up-coming

         23  administration to hopefully make that --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. But there

         25  hasn't been any discussions that would prohibit
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          2  that?

          3                 MS. MIHALTSES: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The SRO Law

          5  Projects --

          6                 MS. MIHALTSES: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: They are

          8  restored through the HPD actions --

          9                 MS. MIHALTSES: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Yes. Didn't we go

         11  through that already?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, you may

         13  have. I was not here.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. MIHALTSES: You're welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, ladies

         17  and gentlemen, at this juncture, before we vote

         18  again, I want to repeat what we said at the

         19  beginning of the session, where I extended my thanks

         20  for the years of outstanding work and dedication.

         21  Again, I want to repeat that I think you're all

         22  wonderful, I think you're all creative, I wish

         23  everybody well, I wish everybody success. It is

         24  indeed a bittersweet moment, but life does go on.

         25                 We are going to now vote as follows:
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          2  Intro. 954, regarding the assessors will be laid

          3  over. Land Use 1227 will voted on, and GO, General

          4  Orders, Land Use 1228 will be voted on.

          5                 We are also voting on MN 3 and 4, and

          6  we will be voting to file MN 2.

          7                 Roll call, please.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Berman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Pinkett.

         11                 (No response.)

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Continue the roll

         13  call.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Spigner.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Michels.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Michels.

         20                 (No response.)

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Continue the roll

         22  call.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Eisland.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Dear.
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          2                 (No response.)

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: O'Donovan.

          4                 (No response.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Wooten.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. O'Donovan

          7  will vote given a chance.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: I'm here. I

          9  didn't leave yet.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Excuse me, my

         11  name was called?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, not yet.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: My

         14  colleagues, and particularly the Chairman, Herb

         15  Berman, I've been a member of this particular

         16  committee for many, many years, and I find it

         17  delightful to be a member of this Committee.

         18                 The Finance Committee is probably one

         19  of the most important committees in the Council,

         20  because it's the budget, and so many people believe

         21  that a budget, you know, the people get up, they go

         22  to work on a bus or a ferry or train and they get

         23  their garbage picked up, the police, the firemen,

         24  God bless them, are on the streets and everything

         25  else and it seems like it just happens. But when you
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          2  look at a budget, we've been through some bad times,

          3  Mr. Chairman, as you know, in this City, when we had

          4  to cut back on sanitation and various programs, and

          5  all of a sudden people realized that the budget

          6  process is very, very important, and to put budgets

          7  together all these years that you have been here and

          8  me and try to help the City and help the cultural

          9  institutions and the library, education,

         10  transportation, the whole thing, was wonderful. It

         11  wasn't easy for you, I know it, it wasn't easy for

         12  all of us, but I'm truly honored and pleasured to

         13  have served under your leadership and to learn about

         14  a budget, a real big, big budget, with real big

         15  money, and this great City of New York.

         16                 And, so, I'm delighted to have

         17  served, and all my colleagues, I wish you well, and

         18  God speed. I vote aye.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         20  much, it's very kind of you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: You're

         22  welcome.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Wooten.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Herbie, is

         25  this time we say good-bye?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Wooten.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: You want me to

          4  say good-bye?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Never.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Well, may I

          7  please explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Please do, Ms.

          9  Wooten.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: I just want

         11  you to know that I'm going to miss you guys,

         12  especially here in this fighting Finance Committee.

         13  We've had some serious times, we've had some

         14  differences, however, this is the Committee that

         15  always, I want you to hear everything I have to say,

         16  however, we were always able to come to a resolve.

         17                 Haeda, your team has been really

         18  inspirational support for me in my understanding,

         19  and I know sometimes I have not been so good, but,

         20  however, Staci and the rest of them have kind of

         21  kept me complete and understanding it, because Herb

         22  don't like people to talk too loud and too long in

         23  his hearings, so I have to get all my information

         24  and knowledge before I sit down.

         25                 So, Herb, on that note, it's really

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  been great, you know, a learning process for me, but

          3  a serious learning process where I don't even think

          4  money could buy. I think that being a part of a

          5  process and learning as you go have been

          6  inspirational to me, and been supportive of me and

          7  some of the decisions that I've made.

          8                 So, on that note, so long to all of

          9  you. I'm not far away, hopefully, but anyway, let's

         10  keep in touch and I vote aye on all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you,

         12  Priscilla.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: McCaffrey.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Mr.

         15  Chairman, if I could be temporarily excused to

         16  explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Certainly.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: In voting

         19  yes, let me just say, I have been delighted to be on

         20  this Committee, having read Dante's Inferno helped

         21  me. Let me just say that it is important for us to

         22  understand that we have at times against immense

         23  odds done for people in the City of New York the

         24  best we could. Understanding that our staff is

         25  small, they have made up with their talent and their
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          2  genius ways in which we have been able to offset the

          3  Administrations, over the years. We have been able

          4  to at the same time demonstrate a lot of guts and

          5  improving the quality of life in this City. We did

          6  not receive necessarily the type of attention in

          7  that battle at times that we should have received

          8  that could have aided the course, but so be that. I

          9  want to thank you for having been a chairman with

         10  unlimited patience. There were days when this was a

         11  repeat of I'm Not Rappaport in the dialogue with

         12  some of the members that you've had. I want to thank

         13  staff, Haeda and Cheech and Larian and all of the

         14  folks at Finance who have been absolutely terrific.

         15  I see Amy Klein in the back of the room, I'm glad

         16  that she is here, and Jeff is behind me here, to

         17  thank them for all of their wonderful talent in

         18  terms of improving the capital needs of the City of

         19  New York. You can go in every single neighborhood in

         20  this City and see the results, not of an

         21  administration, but of the Council work. Every one

         22  of those neighborhood parks out there bears our

         23  stamp. Every one of those school improvements out

         24  there, when they couldn't get through to the

         25  bureaucracy, for the Council staff. There is a
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          2  generation of students who now suddenly had

          3  computers in the classroom because of this Committee

          4  and this Council, and, so, we are proud in the

          5  accomplishments that we have been able to render as

          6  a result of this Committee. I vote aye on this, and

          7  to all of my colleagues, I say we have done good

          8  work.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         10                 Continue the roll call.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koslowitz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: May I be

         13  excused to explain my vote?

         14                 Although I haven't been on this

         15  Committee for a very long time, the short time that

         16  I have been on it I really enjoyed it and I want to

         17  thank you, Mr. Chairman, for your wonderful

         18  leadership here and everywhere, it's really been a

         19  pleasure.

         20                 And also, the Finance Committee, to

         21  Haeda, to Larian, to Cheech, and to all of you, and

         22  Jim, who I've had the pleasure to work with for the

         23  past ten years, I just want to say thank you to all

         24  of you, you have been great. And to Amy and to Jeff,

         25  also, and I just want to say dido about what Walter
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          2  said about our community.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: How do you vote?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: And I vote

          6  aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I vote aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Michels.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Chairman,

         11  may I be excused to explain my vote?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I guess so, Stan.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thanks a lot.

         14                 You've been guessing a lot lately, I

         15  hope you guessed right this time.

         16                 This is my 24th year in the Council

         17  and about half of that has been on this Committee,

         18  and I think it's been a good committee and I think

         19  Walter is absolutely right, we have left our mark on

         20  the City in areas where the City Administration has

         21  not left their mark, and he's right on the parks,

         22  and on certainly the culturals we have left our

         23  mark, and on housing in this City, which a City

         24  which would not have any affordable housing policy,

         25  we are the only game in town. And unfortunately,
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          2  because of the September 11th, we find ourselves

          3  sitting down here and trying to restore some monies

          4  after a huge cut has been taking place, but over the

          5  years it's been like Sisophis (phonetic) we feel

          6  like Sisophis sometimes, trying to get that rock up

          7  the mountain, but we have done it and we have done

          8  it with good leadership, such as yours and Peter

          9  Vallone's, and I'm very proud to be on this

         10  Committee, and I think our communities have

         11  benefitted from what we have done, and, therefore, I

         12  vote once again, aye.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Michels.

         15                 Anybody who has not voted?

         16                 Would you announce the vote, please?

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of ten in

         18  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         19  abstentions, all items are adopted.

         20                 Please sign the reports.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you. Please

         22  sign the reports. We go next door.

         23                 (The following written testimony was

         24  read into the record.)

         25
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          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  Joshua D. Filler

          4  Director of City Legislative Affairs &

          5  Chief of Staff to the Deputy Mayor for Operations

          6  Office of the Mayor

          7

          8                 Memorandum in Opposition.

          9

         10                 Title: A Local Law to amend the

         11  administrative code of the City of New York in

         12  relation to the duties of assessors in assessing

         13  real property.

         14

         15                 Legislative Reference: Introductory

         16  Number 954

         17

         18                 Summary of Provisions:

         19                 This legislation would require City

         20  tax assessors to personally assess each parcel of

         21  taxable real estate every year. It would also

         22  mandate that each individual assessor provide a

         23  statement under oath to the Commissioner of Finance

         24  to certify his or her work. An assessor's workload

         25  would be limited to either no more than one percent
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          2  of the assessment of the City or four volumes.

          3  Finally, the Department of Finance (DOF) would only

          4  be able to employ "certified assessors."

          5                 Reasons for Opposition:

          6                 This legislation is both illegal and

          7  would allow the Council to inappropriately

          8  micromanage the affairs of a City agency.

          9                 The Bill is Illegal.

         10                 By attempting to micromanage the

         11  daily operations of DOF, this legislation illegally

         12  curtails the power of the Executive Branch to

         13  oversee and manage city agencies. The City Charter

         14  expressly grants the Mayor the authority to allocate

         15  employees in ways that ensure the maximum efficiency

         16  of City government. NYC Charter 3,8. The Charter

         17  also expressly charges the Commissioner of Finance

         18  with the Management of the programs under the

         19  purview of the agency and places tax assessors

         20  "under the direction of the commissioner" to assess

         21  real property "in the several districts that may be

         22  assigned to them by the commissioner." NYC Charter

         23  387, 389, 815(a)(18), 1504(1), 1506.

         24                 This legislation would undermine the

         25  Charter-granted authority of the Mayor and the
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          2  Finance Commissioner to manage tax assessors. The

          3  bill would require that assessors personally examine

          4  each parcel of taxable real estate annually.

          5                 In order to perform its duties as

          6  economically as possible, DOF currently requires

          7  assessors to personally inspect each property

          8  assigned to them no less often than every third

          9  year.

         10                 As a matter of law, the Commissioner

         11  of Finance has the authority to structure the use of

         12  his employees' time. Therefore, the personal

         13  examination mandate that this provision attempts to

         14  impose would illegally curtail the Commissioner's

         15  powers.

         16                 The legislation also attempts to

         17  illegally curtail the authority of the Mayor and the

         18  Commissioner by restricting the amount of work

         19  assessors would be allowed to perform.

         20                 The bill would limit assessors'

         21  workload to four volumes (groups of blocks) or no

         22  more than one percent of the City's total

         23  assessment.

         24                 This provision clearly violates the

         25  Charter sections that grant the Executive Branch,
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          2  through the office of the Mayor and the Finance

          3  Commissioner, the power to manage employees and to

          4  assign them as much work as they deem necessary.

          5                 Furthermore, the provision limiting

          6  an assessor's workload conflicts would conflict with

          7  State and City statutes that govern the collective

          8  bargaining process. Under the City's Collective

          9  Bargaining Law, the Mayor is not required to make

         10  workload a subject of bargaining.

         11                 He has the power to designate

         12  workload assignment as a management function, not

         13  subject to negotiation.

         14                 By conferring a benefit upon

         15  employees that the Mayor may not wish to have

         16  bargained, the Council would undermine the

         17  collective bargaining structure set forth in the

         18  statute.

         19                 However, should the Mayor elect to

         20  make work amounts a subject of bargaining, Article

         21  Fourteen of the State Civil Service Law empowers

         22  him, as the City's Chief Executive, to reach an

         23  agreement with the employee unions on the issue. The

         24  Council cannot circumvent the Mayor's authority

         25  under State law to conduct negotiations.
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          2                 Finally, the bill is flawed

          3  technically. Pursuant to State Municipal Home Rule

          4  Law, any legislation that seeks to change "a

          5  provision of law relating to assessments of real

          6  property" must permit members of the public a

          7  forty-five day window in which to file a petition to

          8  hold a referendum on the local law. This bill does

          9  not contain the requisite provision.

         10                 Poor Policy.

         11                 Introductory 954 blatantly attempts

         12  to micromanage the affairs of DOF. Decisions such as

         13  the best use of employees' time and the amount of

         14  work each individual employee should perform are

         15  basic management functions.

         16                 By attempting to control the way in

         17  which assessors spend their time and by placing a

         18  ceiling on the amount of work an individual assessor

         19  may perform, the bill would substantially undermine

         20  the ability of agency management to make the most

         21  rudimentary decisions and would create a less

         22  efficient, less accountable work place.

         23                 In addition to the provisions

         24  requiring annual inspections and limiting workload,

         25  the legislation contains several other objectionable
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          2  sections. It would require each assessor to take an

          3  oath to certify the veracity of his work. Currently,

          4  DOF managers take the oath on behalf of their

          5  employees. The oath is a formality and requiring all

          6  assessors to go through this motion would simply be

          7  inefficient.

          8                 The bill would also require that all

          9  assessors be "certified assessors," a term it does

         10  not define. The City's current assessor staff

         11  received training in courses paid for by DOF and the

         12  staff is regularly given additional on the job

         13  training. The City's assessor staff is experienced

         14  and qualified. There is no reason for the Council to

         15  impose this unclear and undefined prerequisite for

         16  employment.

         17                 Conclusion.

         18                 This legislation is illegal and

         19  impractical. It illegally curtails the powers of the

         20  Executive Branch and violates State Civil Service

         21  Law and the City's Collective Bargaining Law.

         22                 Furthermore, the bill attempts to

         23  usurp the ability of DOF managers to perform basic

         24  managerial functions.

         25                 Accordingly, the Mayor urges the
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          2  Council not to approve this legislation.

          3

          4                 Respectfully submitted,

          5

          6                 Joshua D. Filler.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 19th day of December 2001.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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